
Questions & Answers for Security Services RFP 

 

1. Is the current workforce covered by a CBA?  

The current vendor has a collective bargaining with S.E.I.U. The PA Convention 

Authority and SMG are not parties to this agreement.  

 

2. Will the bidders be required to honor the existing economics of the current CBA and 

as the contract extends beyond the expiration of the CBA, how does PCCA want 

bidders to propose pricing? Will PCCA allow for equitable adjustment of the bill 

rates to accommodate a newly negotiated CBA?  

The PA Convention Center Authority and SMG are not party to the CBA that the 

current vendor has pertaining to this work and cannot comment on any successor 

requirements. Potential respondents should take into account the City of 

Philadelphia’s prevailing wage pertaining to this work when presenting their pricing.   

 

3. In Section 3.2B Proposer Affiliations and Subcontractors starting with, “Any services 

proposed by the Proposer that will be performed in whole or in part by outside 

parties, third-party contractors, affiliates, or subcontractors of the Proposer if 

permitted by PCCA and or SMG, must be specifically identified in the Proposal…”  

a. What limitations will exist for the successful bidder to change subcontractors after 

the contract has been awarded in the event that the subcontractor is unable to or is 

failing at supplying the necessary staffing, service, and support?  

The PCCA understands that it may be necessary to replace a subcontractor should 

their work be unsatisfactory. The PCCA expects the primary contractor to use 

their best efforts to replace the subcontractor with a qualified vendor. In a 

situation, such as this, the PCCA would expect the contractor to give notice to the 

PCCA of the desire to replace the subcontractor and the replacement 

subcontractor is subject to the approval of the PCCA.  

 

b. Are these subcontractors under the same labor qualifications as specified in the 

RFP and questioned above relative to a CBA or Prevailing wage.   

Yes 

 

4. In section 4.0.1 L. Scope of Work/General Requirements it states “Contractor shall 

provide working Supervisors who are trained in the operation of the control room and 

can provide backup services to SMG staff and relieve CST technicians for breaks”:  

a. Are these hours billable at the Supervisory rate or another rate?  

At the supervisor’s rate. 

 

b. What type of training is required for this duty, specifically by hours and subjects?  

c. Is this training time billable?  

There are two CST’s that staff the Command Center 24/7. In an emergency, an 

SMG Security Manager will be assigned to handle duties such as monitoring the 

CCTV Surveillance video and answering the telephone for a brief period until a 

replacement CST is called in for that shift. A Supervisory security officer would 



assume this role should an SMG Security Manager or another SMG Departmental 

Manager not be available for this duty which would be an extremely rare instance. 

 

5. In Section 4.3 a. iii. Additional Requirements the RFP states “Evidence of adequate 

bonding of proposers and its employees”.  

a. What form of evidence will meet this criterion?  

b. What type of bonding does this mean (ex. Fidelity bonding)?  

c. As a large company, we do not bond individual employees. Rather we are covered 

through our General Liability insurance for the same purpose. Will this meet the 

requirements of the RFP?  

With regarding to bonding, it has been determined that bonding is not necessary 

for this agreement, general liability insurance will be sufficient. Respondents 

should take note of the insurance requirements in the specifications.  

 

6. In section 4.4. a, Cost Proposal the RFP states “The rates must be at least the 

prevailing wages rates for Philadelphia and vicinity as published by the Department 

of Labor and Industry of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania”.  Recently the City of 

Philadelphia published a required wage that when compared to the PA Department of 

Labor and Industry prevailing wages presented an apparent conflict.  

a. Are vendors required to pay the Philadelphia wage or are they exempt due this 

requirement?  

Vendors should use the City of Philadelphia prevailing wages.  

 

b. If at some point in the future, it is determined vendors are indeed subject to and 

required to pay the higher Philadelphia wage will the PCCA allow for an 

equitable adjustment of bill rates to recoup those costs?   

See above 

 

7. Section 5.0.1 B. Minimum Qualifications for the Proposer/Financial Documentation 

the RFP states “This includes providing financial statements certified by a public 

accountant or annual reports covering the two (2) most recent fiscal years”. As a 

newly merged entity of two large and well established serviced providers, we do not 

have certified financials or annual reports for the new merged entity.  

a. Will similar documentation from the predecessor companies along with a 

statement of the financial status of the newly formed entity be sufficient to meet 

this requirement?  

Yes 

 

8. Do we need to send in a Performance Bond with the finished RFP or do we just need 

to show we can cover a Performance Bond with the Financial documentation?  

It has been determined that bonding is not required for this agreement.  

 

9. Is there a prevailing wage rate?  

City of Philadelphia prevailing wages should be used.  

 



10. Do we need to send in a Performance Bond with the finished RFP or do we just need 

to show we can cover a Performance Bond with the Financial documentation?  

It has been determined that bonding is not require for this agreement.  

 

11. Is there a prevailing wage rate? 

a. There was a comment made on MBE / WBE participation. What is the required 

participation percentage? 

35% 

 

b. Are radios provided or are they to the cost of the vendor?  

Vendor Supplied. 

 

c. The performance bond is understood to be 100% - is that a check or a surety 

bond?  

It has been determined that bonding is not required for this agreement.  

d. What is the performance bond amount? I believe it was mentioned at $2.2M of 

revenue.  

See above answer 

 

e. Is there an office provided?  

Yes. 

 

12. Does the Security Agency have to supply their own communications devices, e.g. 

radios, cell phones, tour tracking, incident reporting, pictures, etc.? 

Vendor supplies all communication devices other than computer terminal. 

 

13. (a)  If so, are there specifications for compliance that we can review/                   

acceptable quantities?  

The PCCA has not set a quantity. The center encompasses 2.5 million square feet. It 

is recommended that guard location, rover and supervision should have contact with 

each other.  

 

14. Do you have / can you supply any Solicitation & Commitment Form referenced in the 

RFP or should we simply use a standard form? 

 

15. Do you have / can you supply a copy of the current CBA for the security supplier? 

The current vendor has a collective bargaining agreement with S.E.I.U. however the 

PCCA/SMG are not parties to that agreement.  

 

16. Is there a specified link for the Prevailing Wage Rates for Security Guards on the 

Department of Labor and Industry of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania?  

Vendors should use the City of Philadelphia prevailing wages for this type of work.  

 

 

 

 



17. Regarding the Performance Bond (Section 5.0 Minimum Criteria for the Proposer, 

subsection A).  Do we need to send in a Performance Bond with the finished RFP or 

do we just need to show we can cover a Performance Bond with the Financial 

documentation?   

It has been determined that bonding is not required for this agreement.  

 

18. If a Performance Bond is submitted, what percentage/amount would be needed with 

the completed RFP?  

It has been determined that bonding is not required for this agreement.  

 

 


